

ARTICLE 15.000 CAMBRIDGEPORT REVITALIZATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

15.10 SCOPE AND INTENT

15.20 USE REGULATIONS

15.30 INTENSITY OF DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS

15.40 OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS

15.50 PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS

15.60 SIGNS

15.70 INAPPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN OTHER REGULATIONS

15.80 PUBLIC BENEFITS

15.10 SCOPE AND INTENT

15.11 *Scope.* This Article regulates development within the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District, located as shown on the Zoning Map as amended.

15.12 *Purpose.* The purpose of the District is to implement the Blue Ribbon Committee Report dated December, 1986 adopted by the Cambridge City Council February 9, 1987; to allow a diversity of land uses in close proximity within a limited area; to provide a transition from the existing Cambridgeport residential neighborhoods to the business oriented uses in the District; and to encourage interaction among activities located within the District; to provide for mixed income residential uses as an extension of the existing Cambridgeport residential neighborhood.

15.13 *Approach.* This Article is designed to fulfill the above purpose of the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District by establishing controls which will facilitate development while protecting the public interest; by setting regulations which limit the aggregate amount of development within the District by setting other district wide requirements while permitting flexible development scale and configuration on individual lots within the District; by requiring a

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

minimum of residential development and encouraging additional residential development within the District and by allowing mixed uses within the District.

15.20 USE REGULATIONS

15.21 *Permitted Uses.* The following uses are allowed in the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District. All uses not listed within one of the use groups in this section shall be prohibited. All uses within the District shall comply with the environmental protection standards of Section 15.23.

15.21.1 Light Industry

- (1) Manufacturing and fabrication, assembly, finishing work (including packaging and bottling, but only as an accessory use) as permitted in Section 4.37 a and b.
- (2) Wholesale business, as permitted in Section 4.37; only if affiliated with and accessory to another use or located on the same lot as other nonwholesale uses. Development on any lot in the district shall not be devoted exclusively to wholesale uses.
- (3) Printing, binding, or related establishment, as permitted in Section 4.37f.
- (4) Storage warehouse, cold storage building, as permitted in Section 4.37k, but as an accessory use only and not exceeding twenty thousand (20,000) square feet, (GFA), but not including storage or bailing of junk, scrap metal, rages, paper or other waste materials and not including outside storage of products or materials.
- (5) Automotive repair garage as permitted in Section 4.37h, provided the use is contained within a building having other uses (including among other uses permitted, accessory parking) and further provided that the garage occupy no more than twenty percent (20%) of the area of the building.

15.21.2 Office Uses

- (1) All uses permitted in Section 4.34.
- (2) Radio or television studio as permitted in Section 4.32f.

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

15.21.3 Retail and Consumer Service Establishments

- (1) Store for retail sale of merchandise.
- (2) Eating and/or drinking establishment, whether or not liquor is sold or consumed, including restaurant, bar, lunchroom, cafeteria and food commissary.
- (3) Fast order food establishment subject to the Special Permit requirements of Section 11.30, unless such use is enclosed in a structure principally containing other uses and is included in a “food court” or similar specialized area.
- (4) Consumer service establishment, including but not limited to hairdresser, barber shop, laundry or dry cleaning pickup establishment, self service laundry, and shoe repair or tailoring shop, or photography studio.
- (5) Rental agency for autos or other products, but not including taxi companies. Such agencies shall be operated entirely within a building and no major automobile repairs shall be made on the premises.
- (6) Automobile service stations where no major repairs are made.

15.21.4 Residential Uses

- (1) One and two family dwellings.
- (2) Townhouse development.
- (3) Multifamily dwelling.
- (4) Hotel or motel.

15.21.5 Entertainment and Recreational Uses

- (1) Indoor commercial entertainment establishments including but not limited to cinema, theater, concert hall, cabaret and night club.
- (2) Recreation facilities including bowling alley, indoor or outdoor tennis courts, public recreation building, health club, or skating rink. Such recreation facilities shall be allowed only if they are located in or attached to structures containing other principal uses.

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

(3) Hall, auditoriums and similar spaces used for public gatherings.

(4) Park or playground.

15.22 *Multiple Uses in the Same Structure.* Within the District there shall be no restriction on combining different categories of use within the same building other than those imposed by the State Building Code or other federal, state or local regulations other than the Zoning Ordinance.

15.23 *Environmental Protection Standards.* No activity shall be permitted in the District unless it shall be in conformity with the following standards for environmental protection:

15.23.1 All dust, fumes, odors, smoke or vapor shall be effectively confined to the premises or so disposed of as to avoid air pollution.

15.23.2 Any noise, vibration or flashing shall not be normally perceptible without instruments at a distance of one hundred (100) feet from the premises.

15.23.3 All development proposals shall comply with Federal and State air pollution and water pollution control regulations, the City of Cambridge Ordinances, and other applicable environmental laws.

15.23.4 Except during construction activity on the lot, all refuse and other waste materials shall be stored within buildings prior to collection and disposal.

15.24 **Required Retail Uses on Massachusetts Avenue. For any building directly facing or abutting Massachusetts Avenue, a minimum of seventy-five percent (75%) of the linear ground floor frontage along Massachusetts Avenue, to a minimum average depth of forty (40) feet from the Massachusetts Avenue building facade, shall be occupied by Retail and Consumer Service uses as permitted by Subsection 15.21.3 or Entertainment and Recreational Uses as permitted by Subsection 15.21.5. This requirement shall apply in addition to the Use Limitations and Restrictions for the Central Square Overlay District set forth in Subsection 20.304.5.**

This new suggested language would require a minimum retail frontage for new buildings along Massachusetts Avenue. The paragraph below would require a marketing plan for that space.

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

15.24.1 *Marketing of Required Retail Space.* As of January 1, 2012, where it is proposed to create new retail space as required in Section 15.24, the proponent shall include a marketing plan for such retail space as a part of the Submittal for any Project Review procedure that may be required in accordance with Section 15.36. At a minimum, such a marketing plan shall (1) set forth target uses and users (and shall particularly target local and/or independent retailers), (2) designate an individual responsible for implementing the plan who shall serve as a point of contact with the Community Development Department (through its Economic Development Division), and (3) describe the types of economic incentives which may be offered to tenants such as rental and fit-up allowances. Subsequent to completing all project review procedures, the proponent shall periodically consult with the Economic Development Division on the implementation of the marketing plan and shall, at a minimum, submit any further modifications or clarifications of the plan to the Economic Development Division for review. The Community Development Department shall certify to the Inspectional Services Department that this requirement has been met prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the required retail space.

15.30 INTENSITY OF DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS

15.31 *Applicability.* The amount and density of development within the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District shall be governed by the provisions of this Section 15.30.

15.32 *District Development Limitations.* There shall be a limitation on the amount of all development within the District and a minimum requirement of residential (excluding hotel and motel uses) development within the District, both as specified below.

15.32.1 The aggregate of all development in the District shall not exceed (i) ~~4,900,000~~ one million eight hundred twenty thousand (1,820,000) square feet of gross floor area (GFA) in nonresidential buildings (which term for the purpose of this Article shall exclude parking facilities and portions of the buildings containing parking facilities and shall include buildings and portions of buildings containing hotel and motel uses ~~and, to the extent provided in Subsection 15.32.1 and 15.32.2,~~

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

dwelling units) and (ii) ~~four hundred (400) dwelling units which in no event shall contain more than four hundred thousand (400,000) square feet of GFA~~ seven hundred twenty-five thousand (725,000) square feet of GFA in residential buildings. ~~(Should the existing building or a portion of the building on the block bounded by Sidney, Franklin, Brookline, and Green Streets, commonly known as the Fenton Shoe Building, be renovated substantially for residential purposes, the GFA of the residential portion of the building shall be assumed for the purpose of this Subsection 15.32.1, to be one thousand (1,000) square feet for each dwelling unit constructed up to a maximum of one hundred and thirteen (113) units, notwithstanding the fact that the actual GFA of the residential units constructed may be greater.~~

~~Notwithstanding the limitation on the number of dwelling units allowed in the District as provided in this Subsection 15.32.1 there shall be no limitation on the number of dwelling units in the District so long as the number of dwelling units in excess of four hundred (400) is deemed to be the equivalent of the GFA in such nonresidential buildings and treated as such when calculating the aggregate GFA of Nonresidential buildings in the District. To the extent that the dwelling units required in the District in this Subsection 15.32.1 and Subsection 15.32.2 exceed 400,000 square feet in GFA, the additional residential GFA shall be permitted provided the GFA permitted for nonresidential buildings pursuant to this Subsection 15.32.1 shall be reduced by the residential GFA above four hundred thousand (400,000) square feet.~~

Aggregate GFA development in the District is at any time the sum of the GFA (as defined in Article 2.000 of this Ordinance) of all such nonresidential buildings (i) which are then located in the District and (ii) which are being constructed or may be constructed in the District pursuant to then effective building permits.

- 15.32.2** As an incentive for the maximum allowable density as provided in Subsection 15.32.1 there is a minimum requirement of residential (excluding hotel and motel uses) development within the District of four hundred (400) dwelling units as set forth in Section 15.32.5. One hundred (100) dwelling units shall be made available for a period not less than thirty (30) years for families having an income of eighty percent (80%) or less of the median family income for the Metropolitan Boston Statistical Area adjusted for family size (hereinafter identified as low

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

income units) and an additional fifty (50) units shall be made available for a period not less than thirty (30) years for occupants meeting the income limits established from time to time by the Massachusetts Housing Finance Agency for first time homebuyers, adjusted for family size (hereinafter identified as moderate income units). A minimum of two hundred and fifty (250) of the required dwelling units shall be located West of Sidney Street.

Notwithstanding the exclusion set forth in Section 11.202.2, the provisions of Section 11.200 of this Ordinance shall apply to any development in the District that is approved after January 1, 2012, except for those provisions that relate to authorizations for an increase in permissible density or intensity of use in Sections 11.203.2(b) and (c), which shall not be available beyond the overall limitations for GFA established for the District by this Section 15.000.

15.32.3 Retail and consumer service establishments as permitted in Section 15.21.3 (excluding uses accessory to and within hotels and other accessory uses such as newsstands and cafeterias serving primarily occupants of the development within the District) and entertainment uses as permitted in Section 15.21.5(1) shall be limited to a maximum of one hundred and fifty thousand (150,000) gross square feet. **Any such uses that are required by Section 15.24 shall be exempt from this limitation.**

15.32.4 Any construction or change of use within the District which would cause aggregate or cumulative GFA or dwelling unit limitations of Subsections 15.32.1, 15.32.2, and 15.32.3 to exceeded shall not be allowed.

- (1) Compliance with this Section 15.32.4 shall be determined by the Superintendent of Buildings at all times including at the time of issuance of a certificate of occupancy under Section 9.20 of this Ordinance.
- (2) The Superintendent of Buildings shall maintain a record of the aggregate GFA of nonresidential buildings within the District, a record of the cumulative number of dwelling units in the District, the GFA of such dwelling units and a list of the units designated to satisfy the requirements of Section 15.32.2. These records shall be updated as appropriate, from time to time, including upon issuance, revocation or expiration of a

The additional language here would prevent any potential conflict between the maximum limitation on retail GFA and the minimum requirement established in Section 15.24 above.

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

building permit or certificate of occupancy and may be relied on by any interested party to determine compliance with the provisions and requirements of this Article.

- (3) Prior to the issuance of any building permits the Superintendent of Buildings shall on the basis of information submitted with the building permit application determine whether the minimum required residential development and the minimum required publicly beneficial open space are capable of being developed within the District.

In no case, however, shall the Superintendent of Buildings issue a building permit increasing the aggregate gross floor area of all buildings in the District beyond 1,000,000 square feet unless there exists at least one hundred ten (110) dwelling units of which at least twenty-seven (27) are low income dwelling units, and at least sixty thousand (60,000) square feet of area have been reserved or designated as publicly beneficial open space in partial satisfaction of the requirements of Section 15.40; nor shall the Superintendent of Buildings issue a building permit increasing the aggregate gross floor area of nonresidential buildings in the District beyond 1,850,000 square feet unless there exist at least four hundred (400) dwelling units of which at least one hundred (100) are low income units and at least fifty (50) are moderate income units.

- (4) The application for a building permit or a certificate of occupancy shall be accompanied with the following information submitted to the Superintendent of Buildings, as appropriate to the application, in order to determine compliance with this Section 15.32.
- (a) measurement of total gross floor area of the new nonresidential buildings or building additions to nonresidential buildings;
 - (b) measurement of gross floor areas of renovations or use changes within existing buildings;
 - (c) the total number of dwelling units in the new building, building addition or renovated building, the gross floor area of such units, and the number of such units being dedicated to families having an income maximum specified in Section 15.32.2;

Notes on Included Changes

Page 8 of 16

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

- (d) the aggregate or cumulative gross floor area of all nonresidential buildings located within the District;
- (e) the aggregate or cumulative number of dwelling units located within the District, the aggregate or cumulative gross floor area of units and the aggregate or cumulative number of such units dedicated to families having an income maximum specified in Section 15.32.2;
- (f) the development site(s) set aside for compliance with minimum residential development required pursuant to Section 15.32.2;
- (g) the aggregate or cumulative gross floor area devoted to retail and consumer service establishments as permitted in Section 15.21.3 (but excluding accessory uses such as newsstands and cafeterias serving primarily occupants of the development within the District) and entertainment uses as permitted in Section 15.21.5(1);
- (h) the aggregate total publicly beneficial open space provided in conformance with the requirements of Section 15.40.

15.32.5 Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection 15.32.1, development in the District shall not exceed one million and seven hundred and fifty thousand (1,750,000) square feet of GFA in nonresidential buildings and four hundred (400) dwelling units, without first submitting a development plan of the District to the Planning Board and obtaining the approval of the Planning Board of the further proposed development within the District or any portion thereof. The development plan shall show the approximate location of all existing and proposed buildings, the aggregate GFA thereof, and the uses thereof; and all streets, parking facilities, the number of parking spaces thereof, curb cuts, offstreet loading areas and publicly beneficial open spaces within the District. There shall be submitted with the development plan sufficient additional information to enable the Planning Board to determine whether the existing improvements and uses thereof comply within the requirements of this Article at the time that such development plan is submitted. The development plan shall be accompanied by a traffic report containing such information as may be necessary to determine whether or not the provisions of subparagraph (v) of this Subsection 15.23.5 have been satisfied. In considering

Notes on Included Changes

Page 9 of 16

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

the development plan the Planning Board shall conform to all requirements of procedure applicable to requests for special permits (including requirements for public hearing and notice) pursuant to this Ordinance. The Planning Board shall approve any development plan under the provisions of this Subsection 15.32.5 if the following requirements are met:

- (i) The improvements and the uses thereof existing at the time of the submittal of any development plan and the proposed improvements and uses thereof as depicted on the development plan shall be in conformity with the provisions of this Article;
- (ii) There shall have been constructed a minimum of two hundred (200) dwelling units conforming to the provisions of Subsection 15.32.2 which include seventy-five (75) low income dwelling units;
- (iii) There shall have been dedicated and installed at least one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet of publicly beneficial open space conforming to the provisions of Subsection 15.41;
- (iv) The improvements existing at the time of the submittal of any development plan shall have been constructed substantially in accordance with design guidelines (including without limitation any restrictions on building heights) agreed to between the City and owner as may be amended pursuant to the Development Consultation Procedure; and
- (v) Implementation of traffic mitigation measures which have as a standard the maximum generation of one thousand seven hundred (1,700) two way (inbound and outbound) vehicular trips at PM peak hour from all development within the District measured in accordance with the traffic mitigation agreement between Cambridge Community Development Department and owner as may be amended pursuant to the Development Consultation Procedure; to the extent that the total PM peak hour two way vehicle trip generation for all development with the District measured at the time of the submission of development plan pursuant to this Subsection 15.32.5 exceeds one thousand five hundred (1,500) trips but is less than the maximum one thousand seven hundred (1,700) trips, additional gross floor area shall be permitted up to the maximum limit of one hundred and fifty thousand (150,000) square feet pursuant to such traffic mitigation agreement.

Notes on Included Changes

Page 10 of 16

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

15.33 *Building Height Limitation.* The maximum building height within one hundred (100) feet of the easterly sideline of Brookline Street south of Franklin Street shall be forty (40) feet. The maximum building height within two hundred twenty-five (225) feet of the easterly sideline of Brookline Street north of Franklin Street shall be eighty (80) feet. The maximum building height north of Green Street shall be eighty (80) feet, ~~provided, however, the maximum building height North of Green Street and East of Sidney Street shall be one hundred fifteen (115) feet, except that east of Blanche Street the height may be increased to ninety-five (95) feet provided that for at least two-thirds of the Massachusetts Avenue frontage of any building, there shall be a cornice line at or below sixty-five (65) feet, above which any taller portions of the building shall step back at least twenty (20) feet from the Massachusetts Avenue façade.~~ The maximum building height within two hundred (200) feet westerly of the westerly sideline of Sidney Street and within two hundred (200) feet northerly of the northerly sideline of Pacific Street shall be one hundred and five (105) feet. The remaining portion of the District shall have a maximum building height of seventy (70) feet except that buildings or portions thereof shall be allowed to exceed such seventy (70) feet maximum building height to the following extent. Easterly of Sidney Street up to ~~eight hundred and fifty thousand~~ one million ninety thousand (850,000 1,090,000) gross square feet of building area within not more than five (5) buildings or portions thereof may exceed the seventy (70) feet height limitation to the maximum building height of one hundred and sixty (160) feet and one of such buildings or portions thereof shall be permitted to the maximum building height of two hundred and five (205) feet if it is located easterly of Landsdowne Street.

This change is intended to maintain a general height of 80' along Mass Ave, but allows an increase to 95' (about the height of the former NECCO factory, excluding rooftop mechanicals) if the height is reduced to 65' within a twenty-foot step-back from Mass Ave for at least two-thirds of the frontage. The desired effect of this provision is to allow large buildings to be broken up into different massing elements, avoiding a monolithic appearance.

15.34 *Maximum Floor Area Ratio Requirements*

For the area west of Sidney Street the following aggregate FAR limitations shall be in effect:

- (1) For the subarea bounded by Sidney, Franklin, Brookline, and Pacific Streets, the maximum aggregate FAR shall be 3.0 except that for the portion of the subarea within one hundred and seventy-five (175) feet of the easterly sideline of Brookline Street the maximum aggregate FAR shall be 1.5.

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

- (2) For the subarea bounded by Sidney, Green, Brookline, and Franklin Streets the maximum aggregate FAR shall be 3.0 with the following exceptions:
- (a) for the portion of the subarea within 100 feet of the easterly sideline of Brookline Street, the maximum aggregate FAR shall be 2.0.
 - (b) renovation of the existing building in the block (commonly known as the Fenton Shoe Building) shall be permitted to exceed the 3.0 aggregate FAR limitation, to no more than 4.4.

As used herein, the term “aggregate FAR” shall mean the ratio of Gross Floor Area of all structures within the applicable subarea (or portion thereof) to the total area of all lots within the applicable subarea (or portion thereof).

15.35 *Dimensional Requirements.* There shall be no minimum lot size in the District. ~~Any lot within the District containing less than 14,000 square feet shall have a maximum ratio of floor area to lot area of 1.0 and a minimum lot area for each dwelling unit of 1,000 square feet.~~ There shall be no requirement with respect to minimum lot widths or minimum front, side or rear yards in the District.

15.36 **Project Review. Area of Special Planning Concern. All development occurring after January 1, 2012 within the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District shall comply with the applicable project review requirements set forth in Article 19.000 of the Zoning Ordinance.** The Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District shall be considered an area of special planning concern **and a district in which the Project Review Special Permit provisions set forth in Section 19.20 are applicable, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 19.22.** All development within the District must comply with the Development Consultation Procedures ~~as currently (at the time of the adoption of this Article 15)~~ specified in ~~Section 11.40 19.43~~ **Article 19.000** except as herein modified:

- (1) the Planning Board shall conduct the Development Consultation Procedure in lieu of the Community Development Department;

The original project review procedures for the CRDD were created prior to the establishment of Article 19, which sets the current standards for project review throughout the city. These changes are intended to clarify that the applicable requirements in Article 19, including the Project Review Special Permit, should apply equally in the CRDD.

Notes on Included Changes

Page 12 of 16

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

- (2) the Large Project Procedure (Section ~~11.44~~ **19.43.3**) shall be modified so that the required consultation session shall occur within fourteen (14) days of the submission of the required documents and the required written comments shall be issued within fourteen (14) days of that session;
- (3) the ~~Large Project~~ Submittal Requirements **for any project review procedure** shall, in addition to those detailed in ~~Section 11.45~~ **19.43.2 the applicable Sections of Article 19.000**, include the following:
 - (a) a schematic master development plan of the entire district with anticipated phasing as it is known at the time of submission;
 - (b) details of the design of at least sixty thousand (60,000) square feet of publicly beneficial open space, to be provided for review prior to the issuance of building permits for nonresidential development exceeding nine hundred and fifty thousand (950,000) square feet;
 - (c) details of the design of the one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet of publicly beneficial open space required under Section 15.32.5, to be provided or reserved prior to the issuance of building permits for nonresidential development exceeding one million five hundred thousand (1,500,000) square feet;
 - (d) a status report on the implementation of and effectiveness of the traffic mitigation measures in place including those counts of traffic generated within the District at intervals required under the Traffic Mitigation Agreement.

15.37 For those portions of the District along Massachusetts Avenue located within the Central Square Overlay District, notwithstanding anything set forth in Section 20.300, the Large Project Review shall be undertaken by the Planning Board. Where applicable, the Planning Board shall be guided by the objectives and criteria contained in the publications “Central Square Action Plan”, City of Cambridge, November 1987, and “Central Square Development Guidelines”, June 1989, and by any additional relevant zoning or planning studies subsequently undertaken by or on behalf of the City. To the extent any provision in these documents is in conflict with the Design Guidelines for the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District (“CRDD”), the

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

Planning Board shall determine which guideline is most appropriate to be considered in the Large Project Development Consultation.

15.40 PUBLICLY BENEFICIAL OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENT

15.41 *Public Open Space Requirement.* As an incentive for the maximum allowable density as provided in Subsection 15.32.1 there is a requirement that a minimum amount of one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet within the District be permanently reserved or designated (without reference to location) as publicly beneficial open space accessible at ground level as set forth in Section 15.32.5. No development shall be allowed which would permanently reduce publicly beneficial open space in the District below one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet. A minimum of fifty thousand (50,000) square feet of contiguous publicly beneficial open space shall be located west of Sidney Street. The initial location of the required publicly beneficial open space shall be guaranteed through one or more of the following.:

15.41.1 Dedication to and acceptance by the City of Cambridge or other public entity;

15.41.2 Easements or deed restrictions over such land sufficient to ensure that reservation for public open space purposes for at least seventy-five (75) years or longer to the City or other public entity;

15.41.3 Lease agreements of seventy-five (75) years or longer to the City or other public entity;

15.41.4 Dedication, by covenant or comparable legal instrument, enforceable by the City and binding on the owner for seventy-five (75) years or longer.

15.41.5 Compliance with this provision shall be deemed as satisfying the requirements of Section 19.59 of this Ordinance.

15.50 PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS

15.51 *Parking and Loading requirements.* Off Street parking and loading requirements for the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District shall be the same as set forth in Article

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

6.000 and in the Schedule of Parking and Loading Requirements applicable to Residence C-3, Office 3, Business B and Industry B Districts.

15.51.2 The parking requirement may be satisfied in total or in part by a pooled private or public parking facility located anywhere within the District.

15.51.3 For any development that is approved in the District after January 1, 2012, the provisions of Section 6.37 pertaining to Bicycle Parking requirements shall apply regardless of whether the automobile parking requirements for the development are fulfilled with newly-constructed or pre-existing parking spaces.

15.60 SIGNS

The sign regulations of Article 7.000 applicable to Office and Industrial Districts shall be applicable in the Cambridgeport Revitalization Development District.

15.70 INAPPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN OTHER REGULATIONS

Where this Article 15.000 specifies some standard or makes some other requirements contrary to a requirement or standard established elsewhere in this Ordinance including any dimensional limitations contained in Article 20.300, the provisions of this Article 15.000 shall control.

15.80 PUBLIC BENEFITS

The obligations to limit development to the aggregate gross floor area set forth in Section 15.32.1, to provide residential development pursuant to Section 15.32.2 and to create publicly beneficial open space pursuant to Section 15.41, **and to conform to the requirements set forth in this Article 15.000 and all other applicable requirements set forth elsewhere in the Zoning Ordinance** shall satisfy the obligations to provide public benefits, linkage payments or hereinafter required in the City of Cambridge.

Since the proposed amendments create additional requirements that were not contemplated in the original CRDD zoning, it should be clarified that all applicable zoning requirements should apply. Otherwise, this paragraph might be construed to exempt a developer from zoning requirements that would otherwise apply to new development, such as Inclusionary and Incentive housing requirements.

Notes on Included Changes

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.

15.90 CONSISTENCY WITH LETTER OF COMMITMENT

Prior to the issuance of any building permit or certificate of occupancy for new development occurring after January 1, 2012, the Community Development Department shall certify to the Inspectional Services Department that all portions of the Letter of Commitment dated July __, 2012 by Forest City Commercial Group are continuing to be met.

NOTE: The language to the left has not been substituted, but could be considered by the City Council for incorporation after acceptance of a final Letter of Commitment by the Petitioner.

Notes on Included Changes

Page 16 of 16

- Current zoning text is in normal font. Proposed additions are underlined. Proposed deletions are in ~~strikeout~~.
- Included Changes: Forest City Petition, as amended by City Council on 6/11/12.
- Substituted revisions (7/25/12) are denoted by **bold, highlighted font**.